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Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited

Director, Brian Burkholder
1104
309

P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000

AHL
Credit Suisse Universal Trust Cayman -
Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund
100 2,821

2022 31
128.21
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Credit Suisse Universal Trust Cayman - Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart
Leverage Strategy Fund
AHL
usb

100 2,821
3.30% 3.00%
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Elian Trustee
Cayman Limited

2020
1
MUFG Fund Services
(Cayman) Limited
2020 28
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2020
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International
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2022
28,544,731 98.2
522,354 1.8
29,067,085
( 3,727 ) 100-0
2022
( ) ( )
(%)

222,017 130.53] 28,980,257 128.57| 28,544,731 98.2

2022 10
40 10

1 | US 10YR NOTE (CBT)Sep22 (CBT) 10.88
2 | US ULTRA BOND CBT Sep22 (CBT) 9.51
3 | EURO-BUND FUTURE Sep22 (EUX) 7.17
4 | JPN 10Y BOND(OSE) Jun22 (OSE) 6.66
5 | LONG GILT FUTURE Sep22 (ICF) 6.48
6 | US LONG BOND(CBT) Sep22 (CBT) 6.02
7 | S&P500 EMINI FUT Jun22 (CME) 5.24
8 | TOPIX INDX FUTR Jun22 (OSE) 4.56
9 | FTSE 100 IDX FUT Jun22 (ICF) 4.43
10 | S&P/TSX 60 IX FUT Jun22 (MSE) 3.86

2022

2022
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2021 2022
2021 31 60,869,252.54 7,804,047 108.04 13,852
2022 31 38,029,521.69 4,875,765 108.55 13,917

2021 51,551,410.15 6,609,406 111.27 14,266

50,553,976.09 6,481,525 116.66 14,957
50,162,496.56 6,431,334 117.81 15,104
46,919,493.40 6,015,548 112.15 14,379
10 44,508,681.59 5,706,458 113.70 14,577
11 41,107,918.87 5,270,446 113.44 14,544
12 40,326,439.21 5,170,253 115.30 14,783
2022 38,029,521.69 4,875,765 108.55 13,917
36,517,116.92 4,681,860 106.53 13,658
33,336,484.89 4,274,071 103.87 13,317
29,695,640.04 3,807,278 98.71 12,656
29,067,085.30 3,726,691 99.11 12,707
2020 23 2021 5-0
2021 2022 0-5

100x
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2020
2020 23 2020 12 7-25
2021
2021 2021 12 7-51
2022
2022 2022 ~14.04
100x +
2022
2020
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BT
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o L R ) e SR A Y ()

SIS RE SRS D AR P IR PR AR 2 S 2 D M SR A R WL <

(BRXFL
100

£0

60

40

20

15% |

7.51

5% |
-10% |
| 14,04
=-10%
20206 20015 20224
(202028228~ 20208125 %8) (2021E1718~-2021F 12A%FH) (2022 1F1H~2022F5/FH)

GE R (%) =100={a=b)<+h
a= B 202 24E 122D Tk S HEE) O 10572 OO i - SRS EEo St

= 2 0 D D M e 1 R R il
2020 OB S, BEIES S 02 RiT B

2020 23 2022
717,154 153,781 563,373
2020 23 (717,154) (153,781) (563,373)
2021 ’ ’ ’
96,493 309,527 350,339
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2022
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AHL

2022 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2,9 521,008 66,798 666,021 85,391
2,3,9 37,481,179 4,805,462 60,097,722 7,705,129
300,000 38,463 - -
9 - - 18,409 2,360
8,9 - - 1,203 154
9 79,215 10,156 111,877 14,344

38,381,402 4,920,880 60,895,232 7,807,378

59 7,890 1,012 30,188 3,870
9 - - 400,000 51,284
5,9 18,606 2,385 19,438 2,492
8,9 13,879 1,779 38,280 4,908
8,9 4,167 534 4,752 609
8,9 347 44 396 51
8,9 1,736 223 10,211 1,309
9 136,062 17,445 - -
8,9 5,203 667 7,632 978
9 2,500 321 - -

9 52,600 6,744 31,076 3,984
242,990 31,154 541,973 69,486

38,138,412 4,889,726 60,353,259 7,737,891

4 350,339 44,917 563,373 72,230

1 108.86 14 107.13 14
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AHL

2022 1 31
2022 1 31 2020 3 23

2021 1 31

2,735,359 350,700 459,393 58,899

(552,053) (70,779 3,258,328 417,750

1,984 254 - -

2,185,290 280,176 3,717,721 476,649

8 273,596 35,078 261,369 33,510

8 55,682 7,139 62,258 7,982

8 76,061 9,752 61,296 7,859

5 90,494 11,602 57,230 7,337

5 65,709 8,425 54,543 6,993

78,996 10,128 53,721 6,388

62,223 7,978 47,801 6,129

8 5,185 665 3,983 511

8 16,203 2,077 3,797 487

724,149 92,843 605,998 77,695

1,461,141 187,333 3,111,723 398,954

721214
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AHL

2022 1 31
2022 1 31 2020 3 23
2021 1 31
60,353,259 7,737,891 - -
10,952,846 1,404,264 73,397,785 9,410,330

(34,628,834)  (4,439,763)  (16,156,249)  (2,071,393)

1,461,141 187,333 3,111,723 398,954

38,138,412 4,889,726 60,353,259 7,737,891
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AHL
2022 1 31

2022 1 31 2020 3 23
2021 1 31
1,461,141 187,333 3,111,723 398,954
(3,799,999)  (487,198) (67,432,001)  (8,645,457)
28,600,000 3,666,806 11,052,000 1,416,977
(2,735,511)  (350,720) (459,393) (58,899)
552,053 70,779 (3,258,328) (417,750)
(300,000)  (38,463) - -

1,203 154 (1,203) (154)

32,662 4,188 (111,877) (14,344)

18,409 2,360 (18,409) (2,360)

(22,298) (2,859) 30,188 3,870

(400,000)  (51,284) 400,000 51,284

(832) (107) 19,438 2,492

(24,401) (3,128) 38,280 4,908

(585) (75) 4,752 609

(49) (6) 396 51

(8,475) (1,087) 10,211 1,309

136,062 17,445 -

(2,429) (311) 7,632 978

2,500 321 -

21,524 2,760 31,076 3,984
23,530,975 3,016,906 (56,575,515)  (7,253,547)
10,952,846 1,404,264 73,397,785 9,410,330
(34,628,834) (4,439,763) (16,156,249)  (2,071,393)
(23,675,988) (3,035,498) 57,241,536 7,338,937

(145,013)  (18,592) 666,021 85,391

666,021 85,391 -

521,008 66,798 666,021 85,391
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AHL
2022 1 31
1.
AHL
2013 12 2
i
Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited 2020 2
24

One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands 190 Elgin Avenue, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

AHL

MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd

2025 1 31

(i) 1,000,000
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AHL
2022 1 31
1.
1
1 34
1
/
1
1
2022 6 30
2.
a
IFRS IASB
b
FVTPL
c
IFRS
9
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AHL
2022 1 31
2.
e
i 2021 2 1
IFRS IFRS
i 2021 2 1
2021 2 1
f

FVTPL

FVTPL

if

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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AHL

2022 1 31

i

FVTPL

FVTPL FVTPL
FVTPL

il
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AHL
2022 1 31
2.
f
iii
IFRS 13
1
3 3
1
2 1
3
v
v
12 ECL
12
2022 1 31
Vi
2022 1 31
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Vil

Vil

h FVTPL

FVTPL
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IAS 32

structured entity

2022 1 31
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AHL
2022 1 31
3.
2022 1 31 2021 1 31 2022 1 31
2021 1 31
2022
/
AHL
|
34,774,904 37,481,179 4.42% 42.17% 98.28% 2
2021
/
AHL
|
56,839,394 60,097,722 3.84% 54.85%  99.58% 2
4,
1
1 1
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AHL
2022 1 31
4,
2022 2021
2022 2 1 563,373 -
96,493 717,154
(309,527) (153,781)
2022 1 31 350,339 563,373
7
/
2020
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AHL
2022 1 31
5.
250,000,000 0.08 250,000,000
0.07 500,000,000 0.06 7,000
2022 1 31 2022 1 31
2022 1 31
2022 1 31
6.
7.
2063 12 2
1 2022 1 31
IAS 12

2022 1 31 2021 1 31
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AHL
2022 1 31
8.
10,000
2022 1 31 2021 1
31 2022 1 31 2021 1 31
0.15%
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
0.12%
2022 1 31 2021 1
31 2022 1 31 2021 1
31
34
2022 1 31 2021 1 31

2022 1 31 2021 1 31
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2021 1 31
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2022 1 31
5,000
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
0.01%
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
0 1 20
1
0.05%
(ii) 0.20
365
(i)
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
0) 1 2%
0.40%
(ii) 0.75
2022 1 31 2021 1 31 2022 1 31
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9.1

A)
(i)

(ii)
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AHL

2022 1 31

9.1
A)
(ii)

521.008 2021 666.021

2022 1 31 50
261

(iii)

2022 1 31 1 374,812
2021 600,977 1
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.1
A)
(iii)
2022 1 31
%
(1,252,08) (0.15%)
205,662 0.02%
(267,758) (0.03%)
EU (197,902) (0.02%)
349,295,458 41.22%
(2,804,163) (0.33%)
(225,752) (0.03%)
(963,102) (0.11%)
(2,191,387) (0.26%)
(325,815) (0.04%)
(27,935) (0.00%)
61,231 0.01%
(1,389,266) (0.16%)
(309,654) (0.04%)
(635,176) (0.07%)
(149,076) (0.02%)
(493,529) (0.06%)
281,414,733 33.21%
619,744,471 73.14%
2021 1 31
%
60,367 0.00%
(443,543) (0.02%)
5,878,408 0.35%
1,084,481 0.07%
545,434 0.03%
1,190,089 0.07%
344,586 0.02%
2,835,811 0.17%
1,849,733 0.12%
169,456 0.01%
1,790,694 0.10%
603,043,980 35.79%
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(39,291) 0.00%
(38,855) 0.00%
(254,073) (0.02%)
618,017,277 36.69%
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.1
(B)
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
S.A.
2022 1 31 2021 1
31 A 2021 A 2022 1 31 2021
1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
37,481,179 60,097,722
521,008 666,021
300,000 -
- 18,409
- 1,203
79,215 111,877

38,381,402 60,895,232
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.1
©
3 3
2022 1 31 1
7,890 - 7,890
18,606 - 18,606
13,879 - 13,879
4,167 - 4,167
347 - 347
1,736 - 1,736
5,203 - 5,203
136,062 - 136,062
2,500 - 2,500
52,600 - 52,600
242,990 - 242,990
3 3
2021 1 31 1
30,188 - 30,188
400,000 - 400,000
19,438 - 19,438
38,280 - 38,280
4,752 - 4,752
396 - 396
10,211 - 10,211
7,632 - 7,632
31,076 - 31,076

541,973 - 541,973
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9.1

©

2022 1 31

(D)

9.2

A)

(B)

2021 1 31
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AHL

2022 1 31

9.2

©

(D)

2022 1 31 2021 1 31

(E)

2022 1 31 2021 1
31
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9.2

(F)

©)

(H)

0

9.3

IFRS 13

2025 1 31
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.3
1
2 1
3
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.3
2022 1 31 2021 1 31
2022 1 31
2 3
AHL
|
$ 37,481,179  $ - $ 37,481,179
$ 37,481,179 $ - $ 37,481,179
2021 1 31
2 3
AHL
|
$ 60,097,722  $ - $ 60,097,722
$ 60,097,722  $ - $ 60,097,722
2022 1 31 2021 1 31 1 2 3
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AHL
2022 1 31
9.
9.3
2
2
/
2
2 2022 1 31
2021 1 31 2
() 2022 1 31 2021 1 31
9.4
2022 1 31 847,385,462 2022 1 31
626,305,891 638,032,082
929,144 19,216,755 449,220,455
442,659,034
10.
2022 6 30
2022 2 1 2022 6 30 7,494,789
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Financial Position

As at January 31, 2022
iSrated in Unived States dollars)

Note January 31, 2022 January 31, 2021

usD uspD
Assels
Cash 29 521,008 066,021
Investments in Selected Fund 239 37481179 60,097,722
Due from broker 300,000 -
Subscriptions receivable 9 - 18,400
Prepaid Trustee Fees 8.0 - 1,203
Prepavments and other assets 9 79215 111.877
Total assets 38.381.402 60,895,232
Liabilities
Administration fees payable 59 7,850 30,188
Due to broker 0 - 400,000
Professional fees payable 59 18,606 19,438
Distributor fees payvable 8.9 13,879 38,280
Fee Agent fees payable 8.9 4,167 4,752
Agent Member Company fees payable 8.9 347 396
Manager Support Service Provider fees payvable 89 1,736 10,211
Redemption payable 9 136,062 -
Investment Manager fees payable 89 5203 7,632
Trustee fees payvable 9 2,500 -
Other pavables 9 52,600 31076
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units) 242.990 541,973
MNet assets attributable to holders of redeemable
units 38158412 60,353,259
Number of units outstanding 4 350,339 563,373
MNet asset value per unit 108,86 107.13

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended January 31, 2022
(Started in United States dodlars)

For the period from
March 23, 2020
{commencement of
For the yvear ended operations) to
Mote January 31, 2022 January 31,2021
UsD UsSD
Met income/(loss) from Tinancial instruments at
FVTPL:
Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 2,735,359 459,393
Met change in unrealized depreciation/appreciation
on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (552,053) 3,258,328
Other income 1,984 -
Total net gains on investments 2,185,290 3.717.721
Operating expenses
Distributor Fees 8 273,596 261,369
Manager Support Service Provider Fees 8 55,682 62,258
Investment Manager Fees 8 76,061 61,296
Administration fees 5 90,494 57.230
Professional fees 3 65,709 54,543
Other fees 78,996 53,721
Fee Agent Fees B 62,223 47,801
Agent Member Company Fees 8 5.185 3.983
Trustee fees 8 16,203 3,797
Total operating expenses 724,149 605,998
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units from operations 1,461,141 3.111.723

See accompanyving notes to the financial statements.,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the yvear ended January 31, 2022
i&rated fn United Srates dellars)

For the period from
March 23, 2020

{commencement of

For the year ended aoperations) to
January 31, 2022 January 31, 2021
usp UsD
Met assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
at the beginning of the year/period 60,353,259 -
Issue of redeemable units 10,952 846 3,397,785
Repurchase of redeemable units (34.628.834) (16,156,249)
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units from operations 1,461,141 3,011,723
Met assets attributable to holders of redeemahle
units at the end of the year/period 38138412 60,353,259

See accompanyving notes to the financial statements,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows

For the vear ended January 31, 2022
(Srated in Unived Seares dollars)

For the period from
March 23, 2020
(commencement of
For the year ended operations) to
January 31, 2022 January 3, 2021
usp usp
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units from operations 1461141 3,011,723
Adjustmenis 1o reconcile increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of redeemable units
from operations 1o cash used in operating
activities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (3,799.999) (67.432.0001)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the
Selected Fund 28,600,000 11,052,000
Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (2,735,511) (439.393)
Net change in unrealized depreciation/
(appreciation) on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss 552,053 (3.258,328)
Im¢rease in due from broker (300,000) -
Yecrease/(increase) in prepaid Trustees fees 1,203 (1,203)
Decreasef{increase) in prepayments and other
AS5E15 32,662 {111.877)
Decreasef{increase) in subscription receivable 18,409 i 18.409)
{Decrease)/increase in Administration fees payable (22,298) 30,188
(Decrease)/increase in due 1o broker (400,000) 400,000
{Decrease ) increase in Professional fees payable (832) 19,438
{Decrease)/increase in Distributor fees payable {24.401) 38,280
( Decrease)/increase in Fee Agent fees payable (585) 4,752
(Decrease)increase in Agent Member Company
fees payvable (49} 196
{Decrease)increase in Manager Support Service
Provider fees payable (8.475) 10,211
Increase in Redemption payable 136,062 -
( Decrease)increase in Investment Manager fees
payable (2,429) 7632
Increase in Trustee fees payable 2,500 -
Increase in other payables 21,524 3,076
Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities 23,530,975 (56,575,515)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable units 10,952 846 73,397,785
Payment on repurchase of redeemable units (34,628 834) (16,156,249}
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (23.675,988) 57,241,536
Met (decrease)/increase in cash {145,013) G66,02 1
Cash at beginning of the year/period B66,021 -
Cash at end of the year/period 521,008 666,021

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2022
(Searted in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and background information

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series
trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the *Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust
constituted by a master trust deed dated December 2, 2013, under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust
was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated February 24, 2020 and made between Elian
Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, and the Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager™). The principal office of the
Trustee and therefore the Series Trust is One MNexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005,
Cayman Islands (formerly, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY 1-9007, Cayman Islands),
All Unitholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions
of the Master Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto.

The Man AHL Active Balanced (the “Selected Fund™) aims to generate capital growth over the medium to
long term by providing dynamic exposure to a range of assets and to provide an excess return stream with a
stable level of volatility regardless of market conditions. Such excess return stream refers to a return in
excess of that which would be provided by investment in high-quality, short-dated government bills,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to generate capital growth by investing substantially all of
the assets of the Series Trust into the | Class Shares of the Selected Fund, which invests in {among other
things) global equity indices futures and bond futures using a proprietary quantitative model.

The Administrator of the Series Trust is MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited (the *Administrator™).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd (the “Investment
Manager”).

The Manager has authorised Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. to act as a distributor of the units in Japan. The
Manager may appoint further distributors of the units in future {each a “Distributor” and collectively the
“Distributors™).

The Fee Agent of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse International (the “Fee Agent™)

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member
Company™).

Daiwa Asset Management (Japan) Co. Ltd., acts as the Manager Support Service Provider (the “Manager
Support Service Provider™).

Final Repurchaxe Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of January 31, 2025 and the earliest practicable repurchase
day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day™), unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Supplemental Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(1) the Wet Asset Value on any valuation day is USDS1,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafier the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving
notice to all unitholders; or

(ii) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each a
“Compulsory Repurchase Event™).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2022
(Stated fn United States doflars)

1. Incorporation and background information (continued)

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase
Day at the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 34 as
the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not alse a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time
determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Assel Value per
unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price™). There is no repurchase fee applied to the
Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on June 30, 2022,
2. Significant accounting policies
{a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and interpretations adopted by the Inmternational Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB").

fh

-

Basis of measurement

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States dollar and not
the local currency of the Cayman Islands, reflecting the fact that the units of the Series Trust are issued
and repurchased in United States dollars,

The financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), including investments in Selected Fund. Other financial assets and
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost or historical cost,

fob Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applving
accounting pelicies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in Note 9,

fdl Foreign currency transfation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency-closing exchange rate at
the reporting dates. Non-monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign cumrencies that are
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals
or settlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2022
fhraved in United Sraves dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

fe) Accounting policy and disclosures

(i} Standards, amendments and interpretations that is effective for the financial year beginning
February |, 2021,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
herein. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies,

(i) Mew standards. amendments and interpretations effective after February 1, 2021 and have not been
early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interprefations are effective for annual
periods beginning afier February 1, 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these
financial statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Series Trust.

(] Finarcial instraments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FYTPL on the trade
date, which is the date at which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which

they are originated.

A financial assel or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL. transaction costs that are directly anributable to its acquisition or issue.

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

# it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows: and

& its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of
principal and interest.

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
The Series Trust has determined that it has two busingss models,

e Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments
and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

s (Onher business model: this includes investments in Selected Fund, These financial asseis are
managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place or based on the net asset value per unit obtained from their respective administrator,
which management deems to approximale fair value.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(1 Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (contined)
lassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

Classification of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amontised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: This includes investment manager fees pavable,
administration fees pavable, professional fees payable. distributor fees payable, fees agent fees
payable, agent member company fees payable, manager support service provider fees payable, due
to broker and other payables.

(fit}  Fair value measurement principles

“‘Fair Value® is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the guoted price in
an active market for that instrument, A market is regarded as “active’ if transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a close price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Series Trust calibrates valuation techniques
and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Financial instraments (convinied)

(i) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority 1o unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priorily to
measurements invelving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

» Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date,

# Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are abservable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (lowest among hierarchy L

The level in fair value hierarchy within a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

fiv) Amartised cost measurement

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repavments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

vl Tmpairment

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised
cost on 1 2-month or lifetime basis.

Impairment on cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments and other assets has been measured
on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series
Trust considers the credit risk is low or not material as a whole based on the external credit ratings
of the counterparties. On this basis, there was no impairment recorded by the Series Trust for the
year ended January 31, 2022,

fvi)  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legally enforceable right 1o offset
the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and setile the
liability simultaneously.

As at January 31, 2022 and, all financial assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as
none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for net change in unrealized and realized gains
on investments in Selected Fund.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i Financial Instruments (continued)
{vii} Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial
asscts that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
a separate asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (and
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

{vifi} Specific instruntents
Cash

This includes cash deposited with banks, which is subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and are held for meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for invesiment or other
PUrpases.

Investments in Selected Fund

Investments in Selected Fund are classified into the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category and are carried at their net asset value as reported by the Selected Fund's
administrators.

Where definitive values are not available, estimated values of the Series Trust's invesiments in
Selected Funds may be used. For the purposes of subscriptions and repurchases, no adjustments
are made to such values, notwithstanding any subsequent adjustment to the estimated valuation
provided in respect of the relevant invested fund.

As a result of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated carrying values for the
aforementioned securities may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for the investments existed, and the differences could be material.

{) frterest ineose

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it accrues,
using the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination
date.

fhi Net income/floss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL are comprised of gains/(losses) arising from
disposals and changes in the fair value of investments,

fil Fees and other expenses

Fees and other expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an accrued basis.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{fr Redeemable units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holders option. The Series Trust classifies its
puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Presentation,

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to
be classified as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

» The puttable instruments must entitle the holders to a pro-rata share of net assets;
» The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical.

e There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

» The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially
on the profit or loss of the issuer,

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at January 31,
2022,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Series Trust's total equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if
the holders exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of
issue or repurchase. The Series Trust’s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the
total number of outstanding units.

3. Investments in Selected Fund

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, but that it
does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entilics because:

- the voting rights in these funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only;

- each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus: and
- the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors,

The table which shows the types of structured entities that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in
which it holds and interest.

Type of structured entity  Nature and purpose Interest held by the Fund

To manage assets on behalf of third party

Investment funds investors and generate fees for the investment % of interest in the investee
manager. These vehicles are financed through  funds
the issues of units to investors
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3. Investments in Selected Fund (continued)
As of January 31, 2022 and 2021, the Selected Fund was denominated in United States dollars. Summarised
information reflecting the Series Trust's investments in Selected Fund as of January 31, 2022 and 2021 is
detailed below.
2022
6 af
ool interest
interest in the Yo of
in the investee Series
Fair invesies funds Trust’s Redemption  Logk
Strategy/Underlying Fund Cost Value funds USD Class  net assets  permitted -Lp Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCED I USD 34774904 37480179  4.42% 42.17%  98.28% [aily nfa Level 2
2021
%% of
o of interest
interest in the b of
in the investes Series
Fair investes funds Trust’s Redemption  Lock
Stratepy/Underlying Fund Cosl Walue funds  USD Class  nel assets permitted =Lify Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL
ACTIVE
BALAMNCED I LUSD 56839394 60,007,722 3184% 24850 90.5R% Diaily n'a  Level 2
4. Share capital

USD Class redeemable units were initially offered to investors during the initial offer peried at the issue
price and will be issued on the initial closing day, subject to the minimum issue size.

From and including the initial closing day, redeemable units of each class of redeemable units will be
available for subscription by investors at a price equal to the Net Asset Value per unit of the applicable
class of redeemable units on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The Net Asset Value
per unit for each class of redeemable units are calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing
day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription
amount is | unit and thereafter subscriptions may be made in | unit increments. The aggregate subscription
amounts are rounded down to the nearest whole unit. There are no subscription fee payable.

Under the terms of the Trust deed. unitholders are the only persons recognised by the Trustee as having any
right, title or interest in or to Redeemable units registered in their name and the Trustee will only recognise
such unitholders as absolute owner of the Redeemable units and will not be bound by any notice to the
contrary. The Trustee is not bound to take notice of or to see to the execution of any trust or, save as
provided under the Trust deed or save as by some court of competent jurisdiction orders, to recognise any
trust or equity or other interest affecting the title to any redeemable units.
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4. Share capital (continued)

The issue and fully paid capital comprises:

2022 2021
USD Class Units
Mumber of units

Units as at February 01, 2022 563,373 -
Linits subscribed 06,493 717,154
Units repurchased (309.527) (153.781)

Units as at January 31, 2022 350,339 563.373

Investors may subscribe for redeemable units of a class of redeemable units during the initial offer period
by sending a completed subscription agreement to the Administrator so as to be received by the
Administrator by no later than 7.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such
other times and/or days as the Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

Redeemable units are issued on the initial closing day or the relevant dealing day, as applicable.

Applicants for redeemable units should note that none of the Trustee, the Administrator, the Investment
Manager nor any of their duly authorised agents or delegates will accept responsibility for any loss caused
as a result of the illegibility or non-receipt of any application sent by electronic mail or other electronic
means as agreed in advance with the Administrator or for any loss caused in respect of any action taken as a
consequence of instructions believed in good faith to be signed by properly authorised persons.

The Investment Manager reserves the right to decline any application to subscribe for redeemable units in
whole or in part in its absolute discretion and redeemable units which have been issued on a dealing day but
for which a properly completed application and payment, as described above, is not timely received may be
compulsorily repurchased for nil consideration.

The Trustee or its delegates reserve the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the
identity of an applicant (or transferee) of redeemable umits, the identity of their beneficial
owners/controllers (where applicable) and the source of payment of subscription monies. Where the
circumstances permit, the Trustee or its delegates may be satisfied that full due diligence may not be
required where an exemption applies under the Anti-Money Laundering Regulations (2020 Revision) of the
Cayman lslands, as amended and revised from time to time or any other applicable law. However, detailed
verification information may be required prior to the payment of any proceeds from or any transfer of an
interest in redeemable units.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each repurchase day in respect ol
redeemable units of a class of redeemable units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. In order to make a repurchase request, a unitholder must submit a completed repurchase
notice in the form or other electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifying the
number of redeemable units to be repurchased so as 1o be received by the Administrator by no later than
7.00 p.m. (Tokvo time) on the repurchase notice day immediately preceding the relevant repurchase day, or
by such other time and/or days as the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine (the
"Repurchase Notice Deadline™),

The repurchase price per redeemable units of a class of redeemable units are calculated as the Net Asset
Value per redeemable unit of such class of redeemable units as at the relevant repurchase day (or if that
repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day) (the
"Repurchase Price").

Mo conversion of redeemable units is permitted in respect of the Series Trust,

116/214



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2022
(&tated i Urnited States dollars)

5. Fees and expenses
Adminisirator Fee

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.08% on the first USD 250,000,000 of the net assets, 0.07%
on the next USD 250,000,000 of the net assets and 0.06% on the net assets over USD 500,000,000, subject
to 2 monthly minimum fee of USD 7,000. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the vear ended
January 31, 2022, and outstanding fees pavable to the Administrator as of January 31, 2022, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

FProfessional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the year ended January 31, 2022, and
outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

6. Operating expenses

The Series Trust is responsible for all other normal operating expenses including audit and legal fees and
other charges including the expenses of acquiring and disposing of investments. These expenses are accrued
throughout the vear/period for which the Series Trust receives the related benefit and are recorded as
general administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

7. Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid or payable during the year ended January 31,
2022,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman lslands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to
non-residents including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-
assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a
‘withholding" basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it
is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust’s
capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to
be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have becn enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way
enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilitics management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax
authorities,

As at January 31, 2022 and 2021, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability
to record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents
the Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes
on capital gains earned by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior wamning. possibly on a
retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the Series Trust.
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8. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee
Agent, Manager, Investment Manager, Distributor, Manager Support Service Provider, and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust. All fees are paid from the assets of the Series Trust by
the administrator unless otherwise noted.

Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum pavable annually. The
Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of its duties. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the year/period ended January 31, 2022
and 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

{nvestment Manager Fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.15% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on
and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees earned by the Investment
Manager during the vear/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the
Investment Manager as of January 31. 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statemeni of Financial Position, respectively.

Fee Ageni Fees

The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a fee of 0.12% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the "Operational
Costs Fees™) accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and pavable quarterly in arrears. The
Operational Costs Fees are payable by the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee. The fees earned by the
Fee Agent during the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and outstanding fees payable to Fee
Agent as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Investment Manager
fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the awdit fees and
expenses. annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government badies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 34 and other similar
offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs,
licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and menitoring, expenses related 1o the
termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would
not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is
liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall
be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust. The
fees earned by the Fee Agent during the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and outstanding fees
pavable to the Fee Agent as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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8. Related party transactions (continued)

Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum payable monthly in arrears.
The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, the Manager may
decide in its sole discretion to reduce or waive the payment of the Manager fees. The fees earned by the
Manager during the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the
Manager as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Agent Member Company

The Agent Member Company will be entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The fees earned by the
Agent Member Company during the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and outstanding fees
pavable to the Agent Member Company as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Manager Support Service Provider

The Manager Support Service Provider will be entitled to receive, accrued on and calculated as at each
Valuation Day:

(i) if the Net Asset Value per Unit antributable to such class of units over the Calculation Period has
increased by less than 2% (using the Net Asset Value per Unit after the reinvesiment of gross
distributions), in respect of each Caleulation Valuation Day, a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset
Value attributable to such class of units; or

(i) in all other cases, a fee of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units, in
both cases accrued on an actual / 365 day count fraction and payable monthly in arrears. The Fee shall
be paid within a reasonable period from the end of the month for which payment is due. For the
avoidance of doubt, on each Valuation Day prior to the first Calculation Valuation Day, the Fee will be
calculated in accordance with limb (ii) above.

The fees earned by the Manager Support Service Provider during the year/period ended January 31, 2022
and 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager Support Service Provider as of January 31, 2022
and 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively,

Distribution Feex
The Distributor is entitled to receive accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day:

(i) if the Net Asset Value per unit attributable to such class of units over the calculation period has
increased by less than 2% in respect of each calculation valuation day, a fee of 0.40% per annum of the
Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units; or

{ii) in all other cases, a fee of (.75% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units,

The fees earned by the Distributor during the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, and
outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of January 31, 2022 and 2021, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust’s investments portfolio comprises solely of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust's activities
expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee,

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund.
For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the
Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in wrn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating
expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due 1o
repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict
its investment activities or be precluded from investing in cenain instruments due to regulatory restrictions
on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

{A) Market Risk
(i} Currency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and other assets and liabilities held by the Series
Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has little currency
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
rates.

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust's portfolio.

(i} fnterese Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates
decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in
response to interest rate changes than prices of shorler-term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication
of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security’s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore,
the Met Asset Value may fluctuate.

The Series Trust does not have direct exposure to interest rate risk, however has indirect exposure to
interest rate through its investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund’s (and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive to
changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund's asset yield
and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixned income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund’s (and indirectly, the Series Trust’s) investments, A major change in interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Trust’s) investments, or
other market event, could cause the value of the investments of the Master Fund’s investors (and indirectly
the unitholders” investments in the Series Trust). or its vield, to decline.

120/214



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2022
(Stared in Urnited States dollars)

9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9,1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust {continued)
{A) Market Risk {continued)

(i) fmterest Rate Risk {continued)

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debi securities are usually subject to greater change
than the values of shorter-duration debt securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of
the Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

The majority of the Series Trust’s financial assets are non-interest bearing and, as a result, the Series Trust
is not subject to significant amounts of risk due to Muctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. The interest bearing financial instruments are represented mainly by cash amounting to LIS 521,008
(2021: USD 666.021).

Al January 31, 2022, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, the net assets would have been approximately USD 261 higher or lower, as a result of higher or
lower interest income on deposits with the Fund's Prime Brokers,

{iii} Marker Price Risk

The market price of securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or
unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or
particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or
perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes
in the general outlook for corporate camings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as
labor shortages or increased production cosis and competitive conditions within an industry. During a
general downtumn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultaneously.
Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An incregse in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2022, would have
increased the Met Assets by USD 374,812 (2021: USD 600,977). A decrease of 1% would, all else being
equal, have an equal but opposite effect,
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
{A) Market Risk {continued)

(fify Market Price Risk fcontinued)

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2022 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust

Countries of investment by the Series Trust Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investments in securities

Australia (1,252 098) {(0.15%)
Canada 205,062 0.02%
China (267,758) (0.03%)
Eurapean Union {197.902) (0.02%)
France 349295 458 41.23%
Germany (2.804,163) (0.33%)
Hong Kong (225,752) (0.03%)
ltaly (963,102) (0.1 1%)
Japan (2,191,387) (0.26%)
Metherlands (325.8135) (0.04%)
Singapore (27.935) (0.00%%)
South Africa 61.231 0.01%
South Korea (1,389,266) (0.16%)
Sweden (309.654) (0.04%)
Switzerland (635,176) (0.07%)
Taiwan (149.076) (0.02%,)
United Kingdom (493 5209 (0.06%)
United States 281,414,733 33.21%
Total Investments in securities 619,744 471 73.14%

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2021 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust

Countries of investment by the Series Trust Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investments in securitics

Australia 60,367 0.00%
Canada (443,543) (0,02%)
Germany 5,878,408 0.35%
Hong Kong 1,084,481 0.07%
ltaly 545,434 0.03%
Japan 1,190,089 0.07%
Metherlands 344,586 0.02%
Singapore 2835811 0.17%
South Korea 1,849,733 0.12%
Turkey 169,456 0.01%
United Kingdom 1,790,694 0. 10%
United States 603,043,980 35.79%
France (39.291) 0.00%
South Africa (38.,855) 0.00%
Sweden (254,073) (0.02%)
Total Investments in securities 618,017,277 36.69%

1221214




EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the yvear ended January 31, 2022
fStaed in Urnited Srates dollars)

9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer’s credit rating or the market’s perception of an issuer’s creditworthiness may affect the
value of the Series Trust's invesiments in the Selected Fund. The degree of credit risk depends on both the
financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected
Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a
purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet
their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust’s credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2022 and
2021 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position, No collateral or other credit
enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund’'s security transactions are mainly
concentrated with their custodian. The Series Trust minimizes its exposure to credit risk by conducting
transactions with an established and reputable broker, which is Mitsubishi UF] Investor Services Banking
(Luxembourg) S.A. and as st January 31, 2022 and 2021, credit rating was A {(2021: A) as published by
S&P. At January 31, 2022 and 2021, substantially all cash is placed at this broker.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure al the reporting
date. This also relates to financial assets carried at amortized cost. as they have a short-term to maturity.

As at January 31, 2022 and 2021, the Series Trust's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted 1o the

following;
January 31, 2022 January 31, 2021
Investments in Selected Fund 17 481,179 60,097,722
Cash 521,008 666,021
Due from broker 300,000 -
Subscriptions receivable - 18,409
Prepaid Trustee Fees - 1,203
Prepayvments and other assets 79215 111.877
usD 18,381,402 USD 60.895.232
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(C) Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust’s
investments in illiquid securitics may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell
the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price.

The table below analyzes the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31,2022 ) or less to 1 vear =
Administration fees pavable 7,880 - 7.860
Professional fees pavable 18,606 - 18,606
Distributor fees payable 13,879 - 13,879
Fee Agent fees payable 4,167 - 4,167
Agent Member Company fees payable 347 - 347
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 1.736 - 1.736
Investment Manager fees payable 5.203 - 5,203
Redemption payable 136,062 - 136,062
Trustee fees payable 2,500 - 2.500
Other payables 52.600 - 52,600
) 242,990 : 242,990
3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31, 2021 ) _or less to | vear

Administration fees payable 30,188 - 30,188
Due to broker 400,000 - 400,000
Professional fees payable 19,438 - 19,438
Distributor fees payable 38,280 - 38,280
Fee Agent fees pavable 4,752 - 4,752
Agent Member Company fees payable 396 - 396
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 10,211 . 10,211
Investmeni Manager fees payable 7.632 - 7.632
Other payables 31,076 - 31.076
541,973 - 541,973

The Manager monitors the Series Trust’s liquidity position on an on-going basis, and does not invest in
illiquid assets.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(C) Liquidity Risk (continued)

Dhue to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with
unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is
managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial
repurchases of units in the Series Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more
rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely
affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the
liquidity of the Series Trust's remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the vear/period ended January
31, 2022 and 2021.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on the Selected Fund and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holders of units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holders of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability 10 continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy is to perform the following:

= Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holders of units.

= Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust,
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holders of units.

9.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

{A) Custody Risk
Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's investments in the

Selected Fund. The custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become
insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

{B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Investment Manager and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employvees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per
unit,
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9,  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks {continued)
(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations
also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically
associated with the settlement of United States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign
countries have not kept pace with the number of securities transactions. These problems may make it
difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the
Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss
attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return
earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities,
the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted
to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Series Trust's assets are not used to directly invest in derivatives. The series trust may be exposed to
risks associated with investing in derivatives through its investment in the Selected Fund. These risks
include;

«  Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a
derivative transaction will be unable to honer its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

= Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that
relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain
investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.

= Liguidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.

As of January 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no Series Trust derivative asseis and derivative liabilities
subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

{E)} Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firm with which the Manager
or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the
Series Trust to the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. Mo collateral was pledged by the

Manager during the period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks (continued)
{(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any generated income. Distributions (if any) may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be
zero. A distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor’s initial capital or capital gains thereby
croding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this
possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the
value of the Series Trust’s investments caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors
by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back
in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder’s initial investment,

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-
treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than
investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received
accrue falls during the yvearly period. this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

The selected fund did not pay any distributions during the period.
{G) No Interest in the Selected Fund

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An
investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund,

{H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for January 31, 2025, the Final
Bepurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

(1) Other Risk

The Manager and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health
organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices.

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last raded market price for its
fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and labilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions Ffor the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation {continued)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation technigues used for non-
standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation echnigques
commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as lintle as
possible on entity-specific inpuls.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the
industry. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated
based on assumptions. The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot
be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for
additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk,

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

= Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

# Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the
asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator,
under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers
observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant

market.
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9,  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.3

Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation {continued)

The following is a summary of the fair valuations accerding to the inputs used as of January 31, 2022 and

2021 in valuing the Series Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted)

Quaoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for ldentical Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs Januvary 31,
or Loss (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2022
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAMN AHL Active
Balanced 1 (USD Class) = b 37480179 - 5 37481179
Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
lnss - § 317481179 - s 37481179

(Unadjusted)

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets (ther Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for ldentical Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs January 31,
or Loss {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2021
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAN AHL Active
Balanced 1 {USD Class) - 5 60097722 - b 60097, 722
Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
loss - 5 60,097,722 - 5 60,097,722

During the year/period ended January 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and

3.
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9, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation {continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Lewvel 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available marker information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market quotes
are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or
pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data
and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of
January 31, 2022 and 2021 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments,

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At January 31, 2022 and 2021, cash and all other assets and liabilities (including investments in
Selected Fund, subscription receivable, prepaid trustee fees, prepayments and other assets and payables
for, investment manager fees, manager support service provider fee, fee agent fees, distribution fees,
transfer agent fees, administrator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees
and other and due to broker) are deemed shor-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature,

9.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of January 31, 2022 the Selected Fund's net asset value was USD 847 385462, As of January 31, 2022
the Selected Fund held total investments of USD 626,305,891 comprising of fixed income securitics
{Sovereign Bonds and Term Deposits) of USD 638,032,082, Futures contract assets of US[D 929,144 and
liabilities of USD 19,216,755 and forward contract assets of USD 449220455 and liabilities of USD
442,659,034,

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust
would expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund’s
liquidity or redemption restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trusts holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are govermned by the rights stipulated in their offering documents, The
Series Trust has the ability to liguidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the
provisions of the provisions of the Selected Fund's offering memorandum. Refer to Note | for information
regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund.

10, Subsequent events

Trustee has evaluated the events and transactions that have occurred through June 30, 2022, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective February 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022, there were subscriptions of USD 372279 and
repurchases of USD 7,494,789, There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.

Trustee noted no other items requiring adjustment or additional disclosure in the financial statements,
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2021 12 31

549,451,025 70,445,116
1,790,000 229,496
364,791,015 46,769,856
21,800,852 2,795,087
388 50

346,915 44,478
938,180,195 120,284,083
1,823,764 233,825
1,501,231 192,473
12,580,470 1,612,942
598,013 76,671
921,997 118,209
17,425,475 2,234,120

920,754,720 118,049,963
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1,684,502,740
92,539,935
(808,583,537)

(47,704,418)

920,754,720
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215,970,096
11,864,545
(103, 668,495)

(6,116,183)
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(36,386,177) (4,665,072)
(36,386,177) (4,665,072)
8,932,685 1,145,260
3,586,849 459,870

169,153 21,687
63,261 8,111
12,133 1,556

5,251 673
265,275 34,011
13,034,607 1,671,167
1,716,508 220,073
11,318,099 1,451,093
142 18
(47,704,418) (6,116,183)
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(47,704,418) (6,116,183)
45,852,308 5,878,724
234,629,558 30,081,856
21,575,528 2,766,198
419 54

265,173 33,998
(7,438,608) (953,704)
(477,837) (61,263)
(601,048) (77.,060)
246,101,075 31,552,619
92,539,935 11,864,545

(808,583,537)

(716,043,602)

(469,942,527)

1,017,569,788 130,462,623
547,627,261 70,211,291
549,451,025 70,445,116
(1,823,764) (233,825)
547,627,261 70,211,291
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378,483 48,525
(22,687,314) (2,908,741)
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266
19

424
336

352

68
79
431
1,094

281
111

201

416

174

60
368
309

134

17
289

40

SP1 200 Futures March 2022

Australian 3 Year Bond Futures March 2022

Canadian 10 Year Bond Futures March 2022

S&P/TSX 60 Index Futures March 2022

CAC40 10 EURO Futures January 2022

STOXX EURO ESG-X March 2022

DAX Index Futures March 2022

SWISS MARKET Index Futures March 2022
EURO STOXX 50 March 2022

HSCEI Futures January 2022
HANG SENG IDX Futures January 2022

FTSE/MIB Index Futures March 2022

TOPIX Index Futures March 2022

Amsterdam Index Futures January 2022

SGX NIFTY 50 January 2022
NIKKEI 225 (SGX) March 2022
MSCI SING Index ETS January 2022

FTSE JSE TOP 40 March 2022

Korea 3 Year Bond Future March 2022
KOSPI2 Index Futures March 2022

OMXS30 ESG Futures January 2022
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407,203 0.05
490 0.00
407,693 0.05
1,048,648 0.11
1,027,602 0.11
2,076,250 0.22
658,298 0.07
49,976 0.01
562,018 0.06
1,388,923 0.15
1,358,419 0.15
3,359,336 0.37
95,526 0.01
114,452 0.01
209,978 0.02
785,800 0.09
359,077 0.04
387,831 0.04
30,340 0.00
390,838 0.04
62,960 0.01
484,138 0.05
123,875 0.01
1,624 0.00
14,053 0.00
15,677 0.00
40,447 0.01
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1,501 OMXS30 Index Futures January 2022 1,603,190 0.17
1,643,637 0.18

194 FTSE TAIWAN INDEX January 2022 122,982 0.01
715 FTSE 100 Index Futures March 2022 984,880 0.11
479 S&P500 E-MINI Futures March 2022 1,778,197 0.19
52 United States 5 Year Note (CBT) Bond Futures March 2022 22,437 0.00
168 NASDAQ 100 E-MINI March 2022 338,975 0.04
13 EMINI S&P500 ESG March 2022 50,220 0.01
2,547 United States 10 Year Note (CBT) Bond Futures March 2022 3,159,356 0.34
609 United States Long (CBT) Bond Futures March 2022 1,338,002 0.15
615 United States ULTRA CBT Bond Futures March 2022 2,616,245 0.28
9,303,432 1.01

20,922,884 2.27
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50,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 10/06/2022 57,097,390 6.20
40,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 13/07/2022 45,656,988 4.96
35,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 23/02/2022 39,844,787 4.33
45,000,000 French Discount T-Bill 0% 15/06/2022 51,342,618 5.58
50,000,000 French Discount T-Bill 0% 18/05/2022 57,007,552 6.19
50,000,000 French Discount T-Bill 0% 23/02/2022 56,952,682 6.18
50,000,000 French Discount T-Bill 0% 26/01/2022 56,888,998 6.18

364,791,015 39.62

364,791,015 39.62
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2021 12 31
- b

1,406 1,580 2022 1 31 1 20 0.00
1,485 1,983 2022 1 31 2 27 0.00
8,392,106 952,651,640 2022 1 20 2 118,075 0.01
52,434,457 5,949,158,461 2022 1 31 14 759,846 0.08
877,968 0.09

386,591,867 41.98
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2021 12 31
778 Australian 10 Year Bond Futures March 2022 (176,869) (0.02)
602 EURO-BTP Futures March 2022 (1,828,532) (0.20)
627 EURO-O0AT Futures March 2022 (1,669,923) (0.18)
37 EURO-BOBL Futures March 2022 (46,136) (0.00)
1,051 EURO-BUND Futures March 2022 (2,984,132) (0.32)
59 EURO-BUXL 30 Year Bond Futures March 2022 (622,481) (0.07)
(7,151,204) (0.77)
114 Japan 10 Year (OSE) Bond Futures March 2022 (406,877) (0.04)
1,144 FTSE CHINA A50 January 2022 (213,013) (0.02)
417 KOREA 10 Year Bond Futures March 2022 (325,030) (0.04)
671 Long GILT Futures March 2022 (143,667) (0.02)
23 United States 2 Year Note (CBT) Bond Futures March 2022 (4,133) (0.00)
(8,420,793) (0.91)
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2021 12 31
100,877,158,201 876,991,951 2022 1 31 3 (769,211) (0.08)
8,222,938 11,545,000 2022 1 20 1 (171,345) (0.02)
383,932,971 340,043,928 2022 1 20 2 (2,918,423) (0.32)
9,937,460 7,524,007 2022 1 20 1 (252,983) (0.03)
23 18 2022 1 31 1 @ (0.00)
7,869,550 71,670,000 2022 1 20 1 47,714) (0.00)
(4,159,677) (0.45)
(12,580,470) (1.36)
386,591,867 41.98
(12,580,470) (1.36)
546,743,323 59.38
920,754,720 100.00
a
b
38.88
a 2.23
b 0.09
58.80
100.00

UCITS 8.2 B
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2022
29,299,279 3,756,460,561
232,193 29,769,465
29,067,085 3,726,690,968
293,293
99.11 12,707
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1103 227
852
10
10
15
21
50

33.2
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2022 735,000 9,423

10
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2022

1,812,396,895
7,561,853
12 58,363,326
25,545,845,783
310,933,256
26 172,118,256,795
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2020 2020 12 31
2021 12 31

22
59

38 131

23

2022
128.21

31
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2021 2020

usd usD
1,541 198 16,025 2,055
1,541 198 16,025 2,055
1,541 198 16,025 2,055
210,000 26,924 220,000 28,206

4 1

211,545 27,122 236,025 30,261
(111,758) (14,328)  (111,476) (14,292)
99,787 12,794 124,549 15,968
99,787 12,794 124,549 15,968
99,787 12,794 124,549 15,968
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

usD usD
9 1,759,688 225,610 1,643,796 210,751
10 210,863 27,035 220,970 28,331
1,970,551 252,644 1,864,766 239,082
10 223,931 28,710 217,933 27,941
223,931 28,710 217,933 27,941
11 735,000 94,234 735,000 94,234
1,011,620 129,700 911,833 116,906
1,746,620 223,934 1,646,833 211,140

1,970,551 252,644 1,864,766 239,082
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2021 12 31
usD usD usb
2021
735,000 94,234 911,833 116,906 1,646,833 211,140
99,787 12,794 99,787 12,794
12 31 735,000 94,234 1,011,620 129,700 1,746,620 223,934
2020

735,000 94,234 787,284 100,938 1,522,284 195,172
124,549 15,968 124,549 15,968
12 31 735,000 94,234 911,833 116,906 1,646,833 211,140
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

USD USD
99,787 12,794 124,549 15,968
4 (1,541) (198) (16,025) (2,055)
98,246 12,596 108,524 13,914
10,107 1,296 (3.543) (454)
10,107 1,296 (3,543) (454)
5,998 769 86,604 11,103
5,998 769 86,604 11,103
4 1,541 198 16,025 2,055
115,892 14,859 207,610 26,618
115,892 14,859 207,610 26,618
1,643,796 210,751 1,436,186 184,133
1,759,688 225,610 1,643,796 210,751
9 1,759,688 225,610 1,643,796 210,751
1,759,688 225,610 1,643,796 210,751
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KYl 1104
309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands
IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB
IFRS

usb
usb
usb

uSsD
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ECL

IFRS

ECL
ECL
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2021

IFRS 16 CovID 19

IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
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2021 2020
1,541 16,025
1,541 16,025

2021 2020

210,000 220,000
210,000 220,000
2021 2020
(1) (1,182)
(5.272) (3,201)
(106, 485) (107,093)

(111,758) (111,476)
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2039 10 10
5,000 2020 5,000 2021 12 31
REITa
o
a
CS
US
us
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT

J REIT
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CAT

HOLT
PIMCO

J REIT

AHL

SBI PICTET
US

17 20

2021

2021 2020

1,759,688 1,643,796
1,759,688 1,643,796
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2021 2020

210,863 220,970

210,863 220,970

2021 2020

223,931 217,933

223,931 217,933
2021 2020

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2021

HKD USD

2020 12 31
12

2020 12 31

HKD

uSsD

HKD
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

223,931 223,931 217,933 217,933
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
958,931 958,931 952,933 952,933

2021 2020
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
2021 2020
106,485 107,093
106,485 107,093
2021 12 31
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16

17
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10
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et Suisser Managaman! (Cnwmnan) Linded
Financisd sixiaments for e pear engad 81 Docamber 2027

Statermnent of Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Fuferance 202 2020
uspb ko Nole d

CREATTTTTTB s

L L R S s S S

T el which interest incame from insiruments at
amarfised cost 1,541 16,025

Met intersst income 4 1,541 16,025

Sevicefeeincome B A0%0 220000

Ciher ravenes =
Net revenues 211,545 236,025

"Heneral, admnisiatiee and oiher operaling expenses B (111,168)  (111,476)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 99,787 124,549

Profit before tax 93,787 124,549

Income tax expanse 7
Profit after tax 28,787 124,543

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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L™t Sutsse Managemen! (T Lanted
Firancil slaforents fov e poar oropd 81 Decomtesy 2001

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

uso “':1“”::* 2021 2020
e

Cacharddue fromoenes T o A " 1=+ - 1,545 706
B o T e s . ol e
Total assaets 1,970,551 1,864,766
Liabilities

Otnher labiities o T . 10 o '5"?3931 . 91?.933
Total liabilities 223,931 217,933

Shareholders' equity
Sharecepital M 780000 735,000

Retained samings - 10118207 611,838
Total shareholders’ equity 1,746,620 1,646,833
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,970,551 1,864,766

Apmwoved and authorised for issue by the board of direciors on

Diresztor

e e

Micolos Papavoing
Director

Credit Suisse Monogement fcayman] Limited

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial clatements.
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Crmai Sifssa Margamant (Cagmen) Linited
Fimncis! stadwrants for thw poar encied 31 Dacwambor 2027

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Share capital Retained
uspD earrings Total
2“21 B L T e LT
Balance st January | (735000 911833 1646833
Prefit for the year — 98,787 29,787
Balance at 31 Decambar 735,000 1,011,620 1,746,620

“Balance'at 1 Janyary T 785000 787284 1522284

Profit for the year - 124,545 194,549
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

The acenmparying notes formn an integral part of these firancial statements,

166/214



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G Sumsre benogeeont [t L
Flnenosd 3 fefemanis for the year sncad 31 Docamber 2021

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

usD “"L‘:ih’_i':fﬂ 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities

Praiil bafore tax for the period 93,787 124 545
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
_generated from/(used in) operating activitles

Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax

and other adjustments;
doterestlncome e 4 (1,541 (16,023)
R e Wy Do eyt 4 e et P S ol
changes in oparating assets and liabilities 98,246 108,524
MNetdecrease/(increase) inoperatingassets: o,
Other assats 10,107 (3.543)
Met decrease/{increase) in cperating assets 10,107 {3,543)
_Met increase in operating liabllities:

i e T
Metincrease in operating liabilities: .. 5998 .....0B6,:604
Intersst income received 4 1,641 16,005
Met cash generated from operating activity 115,892 207,610
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents 115,892 207,610
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,643,746 1,426,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796
Cash and due from tanks o 1,759,688 1,643,796
Cash and cash eguivalents al the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cracf Sutzan fanagement (Cimanar) Limited
Motes lo Finpnciy sfrlemands for ihe pear anded 31 Cecambss 2021

Motes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (tha “Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited llabiity, The Company’s principal actvlies are the creation of trusts and the administration
ard ranagament of assets In truste. The Compary's reglstered office is c/o Maples Corporate
Senvices Limited, P.0. Box 309, Uglard House, Grard Cayman KY1-1 104, Cayman |slands.

2. Significant Accounting Pelicies
{a)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applcable Intemational
Firancial Reporting Stardards (“FRSs®, which collective term includes all applicable individual
Intermational  Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (ASsT) and
Interpratations issued by International Accounting Standards Beard (IASE') A summary of the
sigrificant accounting policies adepted by the Company is set oul below,

(b}  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financisl sialemenls in corformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, eclimaies and assumptions that affect the application f policies and reported amounts
of azeets, liabilifies, income and expenses. The estimates anc associated assumnplions are based on
historical expedence and various other factors fhat are believed o be reasonable under the
crcumstarces, the resutts of which form the basis of making the judgements about carying values of
azsets and lizbilties thal am nel readiy apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estmates.

The estimaies and underying assumptions zre reviewed on an ongeoing bass.  Revsions o
accounting eshmates are recognsed In the perod in which the estimale is reviged if the revision
alfects only that period, or In the peried of the revision and future periods i the revision affects both
current and future periods,

{c) Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation cumency Is Untted States Dollars ("USD'). Fereign
currengy transaclions during the year are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaclion dates. Monetary assels and liablities denominated in foreign currencies are lranslated
into LUSD &t the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporling padod. Exchange gains and
lesses are recognisad In the profit o- loss.

Mon-menetary assels and kabilities that are measured in terms of histercal cost n a foreign currency
ate trarelated into USD using lhe foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Mon-
monetary assels and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies that are stated al fair valus are
iranglated using the fersign exchange rates ruiing at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
cumency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in proft or kss.
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Credl! Boss s Marnagemend (Cayenen) Limded’
Males lo Finsncla! pizfements for e vesr ended J1 Decembar 2021

2, Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
(d)  Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and due from banks comprise cach at bank and on hand with banks, and shor-taem, Righly
liquid Ivestments that are readily convertible inte knowmn amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in vaiue, having been within thres manths of maturity at acquisition.

(&) Other assets

Cher assets are inlfially recognised at farr valve and thereafier stated al amorlised cost bess
Expected Credit Loss (ECLY (refer to Mote o)), except whera the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, ihe receiables are stated at cost less impairmant for bad and deubtiul
debts,

(fy Provisions and contingent llabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilties of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or conshructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of econamic
banefils will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the fime
value of morey is material, provisions are stated at the present valug of the expendtve expected to
settle the obdigation.

Where it is not probable thal an oulflow of ecancmic benefits wil be reguired, or the amount cannct
be estimated relably, the obligation fs disclosed as a conlingent liabiity, unless the probabllity of
outflow of econemiz benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whosa existence will only be canfirmad
by the cocurrence or non-occurence of one or more future events are also disclosed as conlingent
izbilties un'ess the probabilty of cutfiow of economic berefits is remote,

(a Impairment

The caying amount of the Compary's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporing pedad to
determing whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. i any such chjective eviderce
exists, the assel's recoversble amount s estimated at the end of each repoding pedod. An
impalment loss Is recognised wherever the carying amount of an assel exceeds its recovesable
amount. Impaiment losses ane recognised in $he profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requiraments apply primarly to firancial assets measured at amorised
cost. The impalment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credt loss modal by
inscrporaling ressonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions avallable at the
reporting date, This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors atfect
ECLs, which is determined on g probabilify-weighted bas's.

{h} Revenue recognition

Provided that 1t s probable that the economic benefits will flow te the Company and the revenue and
costs, If applicable, can be measwed reliably, senice fee income Is recognised [ prefit or loss when
the investment management service is provided,

L] Expenses

All expenses are recognised [n profit and loss on an accrual basis.
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Lot Susse Mimagenant (Capman) Limited
Tooios o Fiarmoial shabemands o ihe paar anded 2T Decomber 2021

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parlies

Fer the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considered to be related to the Cempany if:
() A person, or a ciose member of that person's famiy, is refited to the Cormpany If that person:
has control or joint conirol over the Company;
fil  has significant influence over the Compary; or
(i) is a2 member of the key mamagement perscnnel of the Company o the Company's
parent.

(b}  &nentity is related to the Company if any of the follewing condtians applies:

()  The entity and the Company are members of the same group {which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary Is related to the others).

i) One entity is an associate or jeint venture of the other enfily (or an assocate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the olher entily is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third parly,

(i One entity is a joinl verture of a thind party and the cther enfity 15 an associate of the
third party.

() Tha enlity is & post-emalayment banefit plan for the berefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related fo the Company.

() The ertity is controlied er jeintly controlled by a person identified in (g

() A person wdentified in (a)() has significant Influance aver the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of ihe entity {or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the famiy of & person are ihose family members whe may be expecied 1o
influance, or be influenced by, that person In their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has applied the following amendments for the firt time lor their annual reporiing peried
commencing 1 January 2021
s Conid-18 - Redated Rent Concessions - amendments 1o IFRS 16, and

= |nisrest Rale Berchmark Reformn - Phase 2 - amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 FRS T, IFRS 4 ard
IFRS 16.

Tre amerdments listed above did not have any impact on the amounis recogrised in prior perods
and are not expected o significantly affect the currant or future perlods.
Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the cument
accaurting perod of the Compary. Nene of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Compary's results and financial position for the current or priar perlods have been prepared or
oresented in Mote 2(k).

The Compary has not applied any new stendard o interpretation that is rot yet effective for the
cumant acceunting perind (Mote 18).
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4. HNet Interest Incomea

uso 2021 2020
Net interest income

ferest income on cash and due from barke o LBAT L 1B,008
Total interest income 1,541 16,025

All the sbove imterast income on instruments are at amortised cost,

5. Semvice Fee Income

The principal aciviies of the Company are the creation of trusts and the adminisiration and

rmanagement of assels in frusls.

Revenue represents invastment managemend fee income samed from fellow subsidiany as follows:

Usp 2021 2020

Revenues

T . QQGCOEI

Total revenues 210,000 220,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usp 2021 2020

_General administrative and other operating expenses

“Auditor ram:..narahun B272) (3.201)
Ditecters’ remuneration (108488)  (107.008)

Total general administralive and other operating expenses {111,758) {111,476}

Al of tha above expendilures are payable fo the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company setlles such expanditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are mo taxes on Inceme or gains in the Cayman lzlands and the Compary has received an
undertzking from the Governcr in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from alf local income,
profits and capital taxes until 10 Cctober 2039. Accordingly, ne provision for income taxes s included

mn these financal statements.
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsoned unconsalidated strctuned anttlies

The Company congiders itself the spensor of @ siructured entily when either ils name appears In the

name of the structured ertity or In products issued by it or there is a gereral expectation from the
rmarel that the Company ks associated with The struclured entity or the Company was invalved in the

design or set up of the siruciured entity and has a form of invevement with the structured entily.

The below unconsolidated strustured entties are spensored by the Company whers 2 fieec anmal
manapsment fee of USD 5,000 (2020: USD 5,000) is received but o interest is held by the
Company &5 at 31 December 2021;

Giobal REIT Income Alpha Fund (For Quaiiied instiutional investars Only)

ﬁumiranla:"!_l_{_lg:_l;l-_}s_@end Equity Twin Alpha Furd I'J:Ql‘ C!Lla.ﬁﬂcd IF‘&tH;.rhnnal Imsturs Uﬂ‘}’} -:
U REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified instifufional Investors COniy)
Dabwa Australian th‘gﬁﬁgﬂfﬂﬁa Aipha Fund {For Qualified Insi h.rtlcnal Inl.-gstnrs c""ﬁ’].......m
‘Biincipal 7 €S Canacian Equiy inoome Fund (For Quaiied Instiuboral Investors Oy} 7
Global REIT Trigle Premium _Fl:mc [Iiu_r_l_:l..ahﬁed Ir-.s‘llmlunuj ImveslossOnobg

"US High Div Equity Fremium Fund (For Cual ﬁad Irﬁtultfvcnal mm::m Only)

UE_EmaIi CaE:- Eq.ulgr Premium Fund (For Ch.larl]al:l Inshtutim'lal Im-esm Gn!y}

‘Dihva Emarging Local Markst Bond Fund (For Qvalled Instituional Tovestors Gnly) "
U5 Preferred REIT In*cume :-und {. c:n‘ Ouajrﬂed Ir-sl:t-.ul,-ana_l_ln_wsturs Onb)

Japa-": Eq i'l}r P‘rer*_lum_qup (Fcnr _@uglﬁad lns*.uhrtscml trr-ﬁs‘m Only)
*Jﬂfhi‘m'u' LS REIT Income Fu-:d (For Dualrﬁ ed ]nsl tutional Im&em Or- nki)

“Diaiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (F or Gualified Institutonal Investors Only)

.ﬁMP .ﬁmlmjna Irhmmn Bnr'd Eurd {Fnr Cluahﬁed Enshiutlunal Tmeestors On y]l

E!:az! Eqmiy Alpha Fmd {For - Cualifisd In:stﬂutmnal Imvaslurs Cnly)

g e ottty iyl el £ R

"Diaiwa Brazitan Real Band Fund {Fer Qualfiec Institutional Irr.-eéqu Qnly)

Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Instiutional investors Only)

"AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Cualified Instiutional imvestors Only}

e REFI' and Raral ‘Estale Er;[Lﬂ}r Furid {Fc-r Chua ﬁed Inst-Mrons. Il:r-estms Gru

Daiwa Amedcan Hign Dividend Equily Quatiro income Fund (Fer Qualified institutional Investers
Only)

samadnn rmEm e a EmssmssmaEEEEEEEmETEEY

"Tiaiwa Amenican REIT Guatiro income Fund (For Qualfied instituianal invesioss Gry)

“Shinsel World Wrap Stabie Tyoe (For Cualfied instituiional lnvestors Only)

‘US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified Instituiional [mestors Only)
“US Wiunicipal Bond Fund

TS CATBIITIN. - e e S T R
“Global Hnah Dh'ldc_rld EI]LﬂJ’ F'rerm..rﬂ Fund {For {]ua.lrfle-d Ins!du‘mal ims‘hefs Dnl;,r_}

Meister's Collection
'HOLT B rn:E.JH:,- Premium Eurd (For Cualfied Enshi_l.!tln_r':al Irwesiors ?I'LI:I

PN Shod Tarm ncome StategyFund e

"PIMCO Short Term Strategy
'aiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Quaified instiiufional Investors Only)

Freign Dencminated Maﬂﬁﬂsmmﬁlwﬂﬂ“
"SR Picket Asia H[—Ta:h Venture Fund

"ALD Ehort Term Band Fund

Sttty Sy S S T T P R R TP T TP T T T TSP P TP TPy T Ty PR LY TRy P )
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities {continued)

o

LS Jpam ic Growth I-L.rld B

__Frm:r]rurn Canry 5t ra_'.eg‘-,r Fund

P
RS e s e F AR AT S TR

D e P g—

e T T T T T T

Japa.nese Government Bond 17-90 ‘r’ear Ladder Fung [Fnr Qualified Institutioral Jrr-restnrs Or'i“]‘

us Tl'aaﬁu!}f 57 ‘r’ea.r__.adder Fund {F:)r Duar-f‘e:d ln_s_hl_l..utJEx"aI irwslars s Only)

AuS'rdla RET F'Il..s
“Asstrala RET Fund®™

Sl e Wy G T o O i e O

® The funds were terminated during 2021.

The Company has not provided firancial or other support to unconsclidaled struciured entities that it

was not contractually required o provide,

The Company does not cumertly have the intention io provide financiel or olher suppord to
uncansolidated structured entifies that it is not contractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equialents comprise:
uso 2021 2020
Cash end due from banks
1':3&11 and due from banks 1,785,688 1,643,796
Total cash and due from banks 1,759,688 1,643,796
Other Assets and Other Liabilities
UsD 2021 2020
QOther assets
interest and fass recevable 210,862 20,970
Tatal other assets 210,863 220,970
uso 2021 2020
Other liabilities ~
Interest and feas payable 293,93 217,933
Total other Habilitias 2339831 217,933

12
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11. Share Capital
(a} Authorised and issued share capital

v

2021 2020
No. of uso Mo. of usp
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid up: B
Cronary shares TabO00 748,000 735,000 735,000

The halders of ordinary shares are entifled to receive dividends as declared from time fo time and are
entited to cne vole per share at gencral meetings of the Company. Al ordinary shares rank equally
with regard lo the Company's residuzl assets,

(b) Capital management

The Compary's primary ebiectives when managing capital are fo saleguard the Company's abiliy to
continue as a going concem sc that it can continue fo provide retums to sharehdlders, by pricing
services commensurately wilh the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasorable
eost, As ihe Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
poicies for distribution of excess capital may alse be affected by the group's capiial management
obiectves, The Company defines "capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regqularly reviewed and managed wilh dua regard o the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made fo the
capital strusture in light of changes in economiz cenditions affecting the Comgany er the group, to
the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduclary duties towards the Company.

The Company was rot subject 4o externally imposed capital recuirements in the current period.
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Expasure to credit, liquidily, interest rate and foreion curency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies ard
practices described below,

{@  Credt risk

The Company's credd nsk is primarlly attributable to amaunts due frem group companies and cash at
bank. Credit dsk s defined as risk that cne party to a financial instrurnent will cause a financlal loss to
another party by failing 1o discharge an ebligation. Maragemeant reguiary manfors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit rigk is kept to a minimal level. The maxmum exposure to credit rsk ks
represerad by the carrying amcunt of each financial asset in the statement of financial position afier
deducling any impairment allowance,
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Liqquiciity risk

The Company's policy is to regularly moniter iis lguidity requirements to satisfy #s contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall dus.

A1 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the Compary's financial Fabilities, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expecied lo be sellied between thres 1o twele
misaiths.

Interest rate risk

The Compary is exposed to inferest rate risk only to the edent that it earms bank interest on cash
and ceposits, Al 31 December 2021 and 2020, a change in Inferest rates would have no direct
material effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or Habilities of the Company.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed o foreign cumency risk primarily through cedain transactions which give rise
to payables that are derominated In Hong Kong dellars ["HKD,

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers thet the rigk of mowernants in exchange
rates belween USD and HKD to be insignificant.

Fair values

The camying amouniz of the Company's financial instruments camied at cost or amortized cost are
not materially different irom their fair valve as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Material Related Party Transactions

In additon to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhera in the finandal siatermenis, ihe
Company entered inta the folowing material relaled party transactions.

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2021 31 December 20207

Parant Fallaw Taotal Parent Fellow Total
Group Group

usD Companies Companies
Assats
Cther assals — 210,663 210,863 = 20,863 290,863
Tolal assets - 210,863 210,863 - 220,863 220,883
Liabilities and
Equily
Dlberlabilies ...223881 ..T.Lz:ss | wiress L LmLLL2lTess
Share capital TE5,000 - 75,000 T30,000 - TEh, 000
Total liakilitias and
shareholders’
equity 958,831 - 958,931 962,933 - 952,933

‘Ceriain companalens g ures Bave Deen neclaa® ed 1o Confam 0 the Cument year's presenladon.
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13.  Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b) Related parly revenues and expenses

2021 =5 2020
Parant Fellow Total Parent Feallow Total
Group Group
usp Companies Companies
Revenues
Sevicsleeicome  — 210000 210000 = 220000 220000
"Total revenues = 210,000 210,000 - 220,000 220,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management personnel (LISD) 2021 2020
Shorl-term employes banaiits 106,485 107,083
Tatal Remuneration of key managsment personnel 106,485 107,093

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 20021, the immediate parent of the Company i Credit Suisse (Hong Fong) Limited,
which ig incorporated in Heng Kong and the uitimate confroliing parly of the Company is Creddt
Suisse Group AG, which Is noomporated in Switzerand. Credit Suisse Group AS produces financial
slatements avallable for public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Certain new sccourting standards, amendmants io accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandetory for 31 December 2021 reporting pericde and have not been
early adopted by the Compary, These standards, amendments or Interpretations are not expecied fo
nave 2 matedzl impact on the entty in the current or fulure reporting pericds and on foreseeable
future transachions.

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters or circumslances that have arisen since the end of the financial perod,
which significantly affected, or may significanily affect, ihe operations of the Company, the results of
those operalions, or the state of affairs of the Company In future financlal years.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial stalernenis were approved for issue by the board of directers of the Compary on 10
June 2022,

15
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2022 100 2,821
Intertrust N.V.
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
2022
641
2022 781
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Credit Suisse International
2022 113 6,600 4,572 3,486
1990 1985
2500199 1990
2000 27

2006 16

Credit Suisse Group AG

El4
4QJ
1990 16
Credit Suisse AG
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
2022 500,000 8,088
1987
2022 31
161.76
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1999 26

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)

Credit Suisse International
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1993
2020
2020
1.4
1.5 2021 12
12,451 3,145
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2.1
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4.1
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage
Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”), a series trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) lll, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at January 31, 2022, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and cash flows for the year the
ended January 31, 2022, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at January 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

June 30, 2022
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Independent auditor®s report
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The Tinancial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the" Company” ),
which are set out on pages 3 to 15, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
( IFRSs” ).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (* I1SAs” ).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (* IESBA Code” ), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent auditor®s report (continued)
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report (continued)
To the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company-"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022
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